ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COMM TTEE
March 18, 2003
1: 37 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative JimHol m Co-Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Al bert Kookesh

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Cheryll Heinze

OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT
Senat or Donny O son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 156

"An Act increasing the notor fuel tax and repealing the special
tax rates on blended fuels; and providing for an effective
date. ™

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 170
"An Act increasing certain notor vehicle registration fees; and
providing for an effective date."”
- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 173
"An Act relating to a fee on studded tires; and providing for an
effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 156
SHORT TI TLE: | NCREASE MOTOR FUEL TAX

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2003



SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
03/ 05/ 03 0424 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
03/05/03 0424 (H) TRA, FIN
03/ 05/ 03 0424 (H) FN1: ZERQ( DEC)
03/ 05/ 03 0424 (H FN2: (REV)
03/ 05/ 03 0424 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
03/ 11/ 03 (H TRA AT 2:00 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/11/03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( TRA)
03/ 18/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 170
SHORT TI TLE: MOTOR VEHI CLE REG STRATI ON FEES
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0444 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0444 (H TRA, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0444 (H) FN1: (ADM

03/ 05/ 03 0444 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 05/ 03 0444 (H REFERRED TO TRANSPORTATI ON

03/ 11/ 03 (H) TRA AT 2:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 11/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 18/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 173

SHORT TI TLE: FEE FOR STUDDED Tl RES
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0447 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0447 (H TRA, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0448 (H FN1: (REV)

03/ 05/ 03 0448 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 11/ 03 (H TRA AT 2: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 11/ 03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 18/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

SARAH G LBERTSQON, Policy and Program Coor di nat or

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 18, 2003



Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM)
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 156.

ROBYNN J. W LSON, Mtor Fuel Tax Program Manager

Tax Division

Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions pertaining to HB 156.

LARRY PERSI LY, Deputy Conm ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions pertaining to HB 156.

BARBARA COTTI NG, St af f

to Representative JimHolm

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As conmttee aide, spoke to HB 156,
Amendment 1; discussed the changes incorporated in Version D of
CSHB 173.

GEORCGE LEVASSEUER, Mai nt enance and QOperations Manager

Sout hcentral District

Nor t hern Regi on

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

Val dez, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions pertaining to HB 156 and
HB 173.

RONALD JORDAN

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During hearing on HB 170, expressed concern
with the lack of an annual fee increase for tractor-trailers and
sem-trailers that are pulled behind a tractor.

DUANE BANNOCK, Director

D vision of Mtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 170, answered
guesti ons.

DAVE SNYDER, Oper at or
Diversified Tire

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2003



Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 173, characterized
the $10 fee as extrene.

JUDY SNYDER

Diversified Tire

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 173 as
written.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-11, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR BEVERLY MASEK call ed the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:37 p.m Represent ati ves Masek
Holm Fate, and Kookesh were present at the call to order.
Representative Kapsner arrived as the neeting was in progress.
Representatives Kohring and Heinze were excused. Al so present
was Senat or Donny O son

HB 156- | NCREASE MOTOR FUEL TAX

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 156, "An Act increasing the notor fuel tax and
repealing the special tax rates on blended fuels; and providing
for an effective date.”

Number 0146

SARAH d LBERTSON, Policy and Program Coordi nator, Al aska
Muni ci pal League (AM.), provided the follow ng testinony:

As many of you know, AM. represents 140 conmunities
around the state of Al aska. For years, AM. nenbers
have supported an increase, both in the notor vehicle
fuel tax and the notor vehicle registration fees, so
long as these fees are: 1) used to fund state and
muni ci pal highway road operation, maintenance, and
i nprovenents; and 2) shared on an equitable basis
between I|ocal and state governnent based upon the
proportion of |ocal-versus state-naintained roads.

Thus, if the gas tax is to increase from$.08 to $. 20,

which is the national average, AM. nenbers believe
t hat : 1) these funds should be earmarked for road

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2003



operation, maintenance, and inprovenents; and 2) |ocal
governments ought to receive a greater share of the
revenues from such a tax.

Currently, Alaska's local governments receive |ess
that 5 percent of revenues from state gas tax, whereas
| ocal governnments in other states such as lowa and
[11inois receive 65 per cent and 59 per cent,
respectively. On an average, |ocal governnents across
the country receive approximately 31 percent of
revenues from state gas taxes. |If Alaska's gas tax is
to increase to the national average of $.20, at a
m nimum 31 percent of these revenues from Al aska's
gas tax should be distributed back to Al aska's |oca
governnments. At a maxi num Al aska's |ocal governnents
shoul d receive 43.5 percent of state gas tax revenues
because 43.5 percent of all roads in Al aska are
muni ci pal | y mai ntai ned roads.

AML nenbers recognize that the governor wants to cut

t he budget. On one of these cuts - the 25 percent
cut, which is equivalent to a $7.4 mllion cut in
revenue sharing and safe communities funding - wll
have a significant i npact on Al aska's | ocal
gover nnment s. Having said that, witing |ocal
governnments into this bill to receive a greater
percentage of the revenue from gas tax wll offset

that loss. At the sane tinme, |ocal governnent |eaders
who are very skilled and have experience in selling

such increases in fees would be willing to work with
the governor to sell this increase to the public in
Al aska.

Number 0339

CO CHAI R HOLM expressed concern that certain mnunicipalities such
as the Fairbanks Northstar Borough do not have "road powers."
He said that the only areas near Fairbanks that have road powers
are the cities, such as Cty of North Pole and the Cty of
Fai r banks. He questioned how this would be played out if nost
of the road nmai ntenance was provi ded through service areas.

M5. G LBERTSON said wusing the revenue-sharing formula or
sonmething simlar to distribute funds to all comunities in
Al aska has been suggested. She said that hopefully all of
Al aska's |ocal governnments and |ocal comunities could benefit
fromthe increase.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2003



CO CHAI R HOLM  said al t hough first-class bor oughs and
municipalities do have road-service powers and therefore could
take noney in and dissemnate it, his concern is wth the
second-cl ass boroughs and Bush areas that don't have road-
service powers.

M5. G LBERTSON said that AML would be willing to work to see if
distribution throughout all of Alaska could occur so that no
communities were left out.

Nunmber 0495

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH referred to Ms. Glbertson's testinony
indicating AM.'s support as long as "two things happen" and
asked, "What happens if only one of these things happen?”

M5. G LBERTSON said the two statenments are directly fromthe AML
policy statement, which is approved by all 140 AM. nmenbers. She
said she was not sure of the answer to Representative Kookesh's
question, but the AML nenbership could discuss it further.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH wondered if AM. would have to express
opposition if only one instead of both requests were included.
He al so wondered if it was constitutional to earmark the vehicle
fuel taxes for a specific purpose rather than to direct themto
t he general fund.

Nunmber 0596

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said that a |ot of rural communities such
as Bethel and Unal aska, are part of AM. She said her concern
with the increase in the notor fuel tax is that some comunities
pay nore for gasoline than other communities, and a $.20 tax on
top of a $5.00 gallon of gas is a lot to ask. She wondered if
this point had been discussed by AM.'s nenbershi p.

M5. G LBERTSON said the two statenents had been approved by al
140 AML nenbers and have been part of the policy statement for
many years. She stated that although this point had not come up
in debate, she would be happy to set up further discussion.

Nunmber 0673
REPRESENTATI VE FATE noted that the tax on aviation fuel, other

than gasoline, is three and two-tenths cents a gallon. He
guestioned what effect this would have on the airline industry

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2003



and how it would affect the cargo pattern at airports both in
Anchor age and Fai r banks.

Nunber 0714

ROBYNN J. WLSON, Mdtor Fuel Tax Program Manager, Tax Division
Department of Revenue, testified that to her know edge, the bill
did not contain an increase in the aviation tax.

Nunmber 0800

LARRY PERSILY, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Depart ment of Revenue, noted that the |egislation has nothing to

do with aviation or marine fuel; it pertains only to highway
nmot or fuel
Number 0849

CO CHAIR MASEK, after ascertaining that there was no further
public testinony, closed HB 156 to public testinony and directed
the commttee to the proposed anendnents for the bill

Number 0920

BARBARA COTTING Staff to Representative Jim Holm Al aska State
Legi sl ature, speaking as the commttee aide, expl ai ned
Amendment 1 as she said Dennis Poshard, of the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&F) had explained it to
her. Currently, state vehicles have access to credit cards that

can be used at specific conpanies. A contract with MasterCard
is being worked on by DOT&PF so that persons driving state
vehicles can go to various stations. The problem is that

stations wouldn't know not to charge the tax and therefore,
MasterCard has agreed to have different conpanies apply for the
r ef und.

Nunber 0971

GEORCGE LEVASSEUER, Mai nt enance and Qper ati ons Manager
Sout hcentr al District, Nor t her n Regi on, Depart ment of
Transportation & Public Facilities, noted that he was the Acting
St ate Mai ntenance Engineer, and testified that there would be a
refund to governnent agencies, from MasterCard, for the tax
assessed on any purchase of highway notor vehicle fuel.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH noted that Amendnent 1 [proposed
Section 5] reads: "For fuel sold to federal, state, and |oca

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2003



gover nment agenci es". He asked if this also refers to I|ocal
gover nnment .

MR. LEVASSEUER stated that this wuld be the case if a
government agency qualified for a tax exenption on fuel.

COCHAIR MASEK referred to the remainder of the sentence
menti oned by Representative Kookesh, in which it states "for
of ficial use". She pointed out that "official use" would need
to be clarified before obtaining a tax credit.

Nunber 1094

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked what the difference was in using a
credit card rather than a purchase order.

MR. LEVASSEUER replied that in DOT&PF, a purchase order is
obt ai ned through the supply section for purchases of a |arger
anount or quantity. For smaller, field-type purchases, to avoid
over burdening the supply function, credit cards are used.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH sai d he was concerned with agencies other
than DOT&PF and suggested that a provision for the use of
purchase orders be included, if there was going to be an
exenption.

MR. PERSILY said that he believed purchase orders were already
covered and that he doesn't think that government entities pay
the tax. He expl ained that Amendnent 1 was brought forward by
the Departnment of Admnistration's Division of Finance in
attenpts to work on a new credit card for DOT&PF so that when a
credit card purchase was nade in the field, it would be "tax-
off* so that the state wouldn't be charging tax to itself. He
said this specifically deals with the problem of fuel purchases
by credit card and applies not just to the state, but also to
ot her governnental agencies so that credit card purchases by the
school district or nunicipal government would also be tax-
exenpt .

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if this specifically had to be a
government credit card or if it could be sonmething like a school
district credit card.

MR. PERSILY replied that his understanding was that the State of
Al aska would get the credit card through a commercial bank and
it would be issued to departnental field personnel. The account
woul d be a governnental account, to be used for official use.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH noted that the discussion pertained to
federal, state, and |ocal agencies and he wanted it on record
that focusing on how DOT&PF does business is too narrow of a
f ocus.

MR. PERSILY replied that this originally began because the
state, in noving to a new credit card system for DOT&PF, brought
up the issue. He believed that Amendnent 1 was drafted so that
it would have a broader application, adding that it makes things
easier on the agencies but also on the credit cards and the
service stations.

Number 1260

COCHAIR MASEK referred to Amendnent 1, proposed Section 6,
which says in part, "on a form prescribed by the departnent”,
noting that DOT&PF is not specified.

MR. PERSILY clarified that "the departnment” refers to the
Departnent of Revenue and its tax code.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked how the checks and balances of
accounting would be done, particularly by the federa
gover nnment . He asked if each departnment turned in information
regardi ng the amount of purchase to the Departnent of Revenue.

MR. PERSILY said he believed it was done by the taxpayer.
Number 1340

M5. WLSON provided background information, saying that federal
state, and |ocal agencies have always been exenpt on official

use. If the agency initially pays tax by going to the gas
station and not requesting an exenption, the governnent agency
then applies to the departnent for a refund. There is a
provision in statute for a user to get a refund if the use is
exenpt . She continued that a second scenario would be that a
government agency could go to a gas station and claim "W're a
government agency and shouldn't have to pay tax"; in that case,

the gas station has already paid for the tax but is not
collecting the tax. There is a nechanismfor the gas station to
get the refund directly fromthe departnent.

M5. WLSON continued that the difficulty with the credit card

situation is that the governnent agency does not want to pay the
tax, and the retailer, the gas station, has already paid the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 18, 2003



t ax. The credit card conpany is in the mddle, but to date
there has not been a nechanism for the credit card conpany to
get a refund. This has presented difficulties because the
governnment agencies or the gas stations would have to apply for
refunds and there was unnecessary paperworK.

M5. WLSON stated that this bill is an attenpt to sinplify that
process so that the agencies can get their fuel and not pay tax
and the gas stations will not be overburdened with having to
apply for refunds. The credit card conpany would assimlate the
"tax-of f" purchases and send the refund <clains to the
departnent, which would then be paid directly. The gover nnent
agency woul d not have to pay tax - which is the objective.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked if the accounting for each departnent
was done separately so that federal receipts were not mxed with
recei pts from DOT&PF, for exanple.

M5. WLSON explained that any refund claimed by a governnent
agency is accounted for separately. The refund claimis filed
by that agency under its name, and the departnent then eval uates
that claim There is a requirenent in statute for an attachnent
of invoices to show that the tax has been paid, and to avoid

dupl i cati on. She said if Amendnent 1 passed, the departnent
woul d produce regulations specific to credit card conpanies in
order to address the challenges regarding original invoices.

She stated that she does not see a problem with keeping the
accounting separate and nmaking sure that there are no duplicate
ref unds.

COCHAIR MASEK inquired as to whether the nonies would be
directed to the general fund or would be used as |everage for
TEA-21 [Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century] funding
for highways fromthe federal governnent.

Nunber 1562

MR. PERSILY replied that the estinmate is that in a full fiscal
year, the increase to $.20 per gallon would bring in about $41.6
mllion per year. He was not aware of a particular dedication
of funds and referred the question to DOT&PF.

Nunmber 1608

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if unincorporated comunities woul d
qual ify.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 18, 2003



MR. PERSILY commented that if a comrunity was unincorporated,
then perhaps it was not a governnent.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER expl ai ned that there are conmmunities that
do operate as if a governnent.

CO CHAI R MASEK suggested that the bill for the increased notor
fuel tax would only affect areas that have gas punps at service
stations.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said that a lot of the comunities that
are unincorporated do have a gas station with a punp. Sone of
the communities have roads, not highways, and a gas station is
used.

M5. WLSON said this bill would not affect whether or not that
entity would get an exenption. She said that it is a question
of whether the credit card conpany can get the refund.

Nunber 1727

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if a friendly anmendnment could be
added to Anendnent 1 to include "unincorporated communities".

MR. PERSILY expressed concern over not wanting to alter the way
the communities are currently being treated. He said that
W thout being sure if the communities are treated as off-road
and off-tax, or treated as on-road and taxable, he wasn't sure
of supporting an anendnent that m ght cloud that issue.

Nunber 1770

MR. LEVASSEUER said if the comunities are currently exenpt,
that exenption would apply to the anendnent as well, noting that
this mght conplicate the issue. He added that the increase in
the user fee is not to be used for ATVs [all-terrain vehicles],
snow machi nes, boats, and notors - it is just a highway user-fee
i ncrease.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said there are governnental agencies that
have vehicles in comunities or use the ice road and drive to
Bet hel, for exanple, and should qualify as well as the other
| ocal, federal, and state governnents.

MR. LEVASSEUER said that the Departnent of Revenue had indicated

that wth regard to usage that was not highway-related, an
application could be nade for a refund.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 18, 2003



Nunmber 1867

COCHAIR HOLM noved to adopt Anendnent 1 [text provided

previously] as witten. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

Nunmber 1882

REPRESENTATI VE  KAPSNER offered Amendnent 2, | abel ed 23-

GH1118\ A. 1, Kurtz, 3/10/ 03, which read:

Page 1, line 9:
Del ete "and"

Page 1, line 11
Delete "[; AND'
I nsert "; and"

Page 1, line 12, followng "(4)":

Insert "the tax rate on notor fuel wused in a
notor vehicle only on roads that are not connected by
| and highway or the Al aska marine highway system to
the main road system of the state, whether or not
| icensed to be operated on public ways, is eight cents

agallon ["

Page 3, line 8:
Del ete "and"

Page 3, line 10:
Delete "[; AND

| nsert "; and"

Page 3, line 11, followng "(4)":

Insert "the tax rate on notor fuel wused in a
notor vehicle only on roads that are not connected by
| and highway or the Al aska marine highway system to
the main road system of the state, whether or not
| icensed to be operated on public ways, is eight cents

agallon ["
Nunber 1926

MR. LEVASSEUER responded that this was the first he had seen of
Amendnent 2.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she understood there to be a verba
understanding that the bill wouldn't affect conmmunities off the
road system Anmendnent 2 just puts that | anguage on the books.

MR. LEVASSEUER asked if an area |like Nonme, where there are 130
or 140 mles of road, would be exenpt and therefore remain at
$.08, pointing out that the departnment pays for road upgrades in
that area

CO-CHAIR MASEK noted that this would be statewide, as the state
owns a lot of roads that are not in urban areas, and the result
woul d have a pretty big negative inpact on the bill

CO CHAIR HOLM asked: If roads were built and nmaintained by
state noney, then wouldn't it nmake sense to pay the additiona
$. 127

MR. LEVASSEUER said these roads are either built with federal
funds and nmatched by state dollars, or built with state doll ars.

Nunber 2029

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH explained that the off-road system in
Al aska is treated differently, and because Angoon is considered
to be an off-road system a person can drive on the roads in
Angoon Wi t hout having a wvalid state driver's license.
Simlarly, insurance is not a requirenent.

CO CHAIR HOLM wondered whether, as a state policy, the road
systens should be treated differently. He asked if the
di scussi on was about noney or about nmaking policy changes.

MR. LEVASSEUER said the departnment's policy and opinion would be
that if any of the roads that were driven were built and
mai ntained by federal or state funds, then the $.12 increase
shoul d apply.

Number 2086

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said this was a different sentinent than
she had previously heard, which had indicated that the off-road
comunities and the non-state-highway comunities would not be
af f ect ed. She suggested that with the witten |anguage offered
in Anendnent 2, the departnment was expressing a different
opi ni on.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- March 18, 2003



MR. LEVASSEUER responded that he had tried to be clear in the
previ ous discussion that this wouldn't affect conmmunities that
use ATVs or four-wheelers to get around, or use boats to run the
rivers. He added that if a community or an individual felt that
inclusion was unfair, application <could be nmde to the
Department of Revenue for a refund. He enphasized that the
intent was not to put the burden on sonmeone who was running a
f our - wheel er between vill ages.

Nunber 2125

M5. WLSON said that the provision for non-highway use refers to
whether or not the notor vehicle is licensed to operate on
public ways. The departnment has enforced that if the vehicle is
required to be licensed to drive on the road, then the full
anount of tax would be paid. If it's the sort of road where
it's not required to be licensed, then there is a net $.02 that
is paid. She clarified "net" because up until now it has been
$.08 as the full rate, and the user could apply for a $.06
refund. She said she understood that this bill would not change
that net amount. She gave the exanple that the net anmount woul d
not change for a truck in a renote area that didn't require a
|icense in order to be driven on that road.

Number 2202

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER wi thdrew Amendnent 2, saying this
answer ed her question.

Number 2213
COCHAIR HOLM referred to the title of the bill, noting that it
says "notor fuel tax". Because the bill does not refer to all

notors, he wondered if specifying "vehicular notor fuel tax"
woul d be nore appropri ate.

CO CHAIR MASEK said a possible clarification was in the bill
under Section 3, where it states: "(2) the nmotor fuel is not
aviation fuel, or notor fuel used in or on watercraft; and (3)
the internal conbustion engine is not used in or in conjunction
with a notor vehicle licensed to be operated on public ways."

CO CHAIR HOLM said he was nore inclined to think there is a need
for further specification of what the bill really does.

Nunber 2293

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- March 18, 2003



MR. LEVASSEUER replied that there had been discussion of a
"hi ghway user fee increase” and also of this as a tax versus a
fee. He explained that this centers basically on what the
governor had said, which is nore closely associating the "cost-
causers,” which are people who drive the state roads, to people
who purchase the gasoline for the vehicles. The departnent is
spendi ng about $60 mllion per year to repair and maintain the
hi ghway system Wth the $.08 tax, about $28 mllion per year
is recovered. M. Levasseuer explained that in addition to [the
state's] $60 million, an additional $50 million is spent in
federal match. Therefore, $110 million cones out of the general
fund for the highway program The people who are driving the
roads, the users of the roads, should pay the fee to take care
of the roads. Thus this is a highway user fee increase.
Bet ween the $28 million that is now collected and the additional
$41 mllion with the $.12 increase, the result would be $69
mllion.

Nunmber 2361

CO CHAIR HOLM pointed out that a letter was received from AM
referring to an increase in the "notor vehicle fuel tax." He
asked if it would be nore appropriate to call this a "notor
vehicle fuel tax" rather than leaving it as "notor fuel tax."

MR. LEVASSEUER added that "highway" mght be added to be nore
specific.

TAPE 03-11, SIDE B

COCHAIR MASEK indicated that if there were a title change,
there would need to be changes throughout the bill as well. For

exanple, page 4, line 18, "(1) the tax on the notor fuel ...",
m ght need to be changed to be consistent with a title change.

Nunber 2362

M5. WLSON expressed concern over a title change because of the
use throughout the chapter of the term "notor fuel." She said
she was not sure if this mght cause nore confusion because
"notor vehicle tax" is not currently included in statute. She
said she would like to defer to people with nore statutory
experience. She referred to definitions in [AS 43.40.100] in
which "notor fuel” is defined. She also pointed out that the

of f-road section is an exception under [AS 43.40.030].

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -15- March 18, 2003



CO CHAIR HOLM said his question pertained to how notor fuel fits
in with the tax scheme, with the discussion being whether notor
fuel includes aircraft fuel, nmarine fuel, off-highway fuel, and
road fuel. He wanted it on record that this refers to highway
taxes, pertaining to properties that are built by and maintained
by state funds.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said the clarification suggested by Co-Chair
Holm was inportant and could be done either through further
definition or through a new section with intent |anguage. He
said he woul d be confortable with either choice.

CO CHAIR MASEK said she would like the bill drafter to cone up
with a commttee substitute specifying that the bill pertains to
hi ghway notor vehicle fuel.

M. LEVASSEUER, in response to Co-Chair Masek, confirned that he
woul d be willing to work towards inplenenting those changes.

Nunber 2218
CO- CHAI R MASEK i ndi cated HB 156 would be held in committee.

HB 170- MOTOR VEHI CLE REG STRATI ON FEES

CO- CHAI R MASEK announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 170, "An Act increasing certain notor vehicle
registration fees; and providing for an effective date.”

Number 2192

RONALD JORDAN said that he had no real objection to the HB 170.
However, he expressed concern with Section 4, subsection (i),
and the lack of an annual fee increase for tractor-trailers and
sem -trailers that are pulled behind a tractor, which do just as
much road damage as studded tires or any other vehicle on the
road. There should be a equitable bal ance between the consuner
and the State of Alaska, he said. Many states do charge an
annual fee for these trailers. If there was a $100 or $200
annual fee, M. Jordan said he would feel nore confortable with
any fee increases for autonobiles.

COCHAIR HOLM related his understanding of M. Jordan's concern
because he has driven trucks with trailers and seen asphalt peel
up behind the trailer when it's warm outside. He asked if M.
Jordan knew what fol ks have been charged for that.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- March 18, 2003



MR. JORDAN directed attention to Section 3, Subsection (h)(4),
which he interpreted to refer to a delivery van. He said that
an increase in the fee for trailers and sem-trailers would
of fset sone of the estimated $60 mllion of road naintenance.
He reiterated the need for equality in this matter.

COCHAIR HOLM pointed out that the fee wunder Section 1,
Subsection (b)(6), raises the fee for a trailer not used or
mai ntained for the transportation of persons or property for
hire or for other comercial wuse from $10 to $30. He
acknow edged the disparity and related that [M. Jordan's
concern] will probably have to be reviewed.

Nunber 1967
DUANE BANNOCK, Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles, Departnent

of Administration, turned to M. Jordan's concern. M . Bannock
explained that the division's dramatically different treatnent

of commercial trailers occurred in 1999. That change was part
of a national effort to not have states do annual registration
on comercial trailers. M. Bannock explained that the
International Registration Plan (IRP) is a program that Al aska
is prepared to join, although it has not done so yet. In 1999
Al aska, for all practical purposes, elimnated the annual

regi stration fee. The | egislation doing the aforenentioned was
revenue-neutral and shifted approximately $1.6 mllion over all
commerci al vehicles. Commercial vehicles already pay a nuch
greater cost than a noncommercial vehicle because the $1.6
mllion was divided anongst them Therefore, it's fair to say
t hat the commerci al trailers aren't paying an annual
registration fee, but it's also fair to say that the truck
towng the comercial trailer is paying what used to be the fee
for the trailer.

CO-CHAIR HOLM replied that he appreciated what M. Bannock said,
al though he said he wasn't sure he believed it because there was
no docunentation to that effect.

MR. BANNOCK offered to provide a detailed report. He pointed
out that in 1998, HB 73 officially changed the way in which
accounting is done for commercial trailers. Wth regard to the
reference to "biennial", M. Bannock noted that the |egislation
is drafted in a biennial form but that commercial vehicles are
al l oned to choose an annual registration fee.

CO CHAIR HOLM requested the historical data that shows the shift
and specifies the fee the commercial vehicles pay. The problem

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- March 18, 2003



here is to receive the naintenance dollars that are related [to
the damage caused by] conmercial transportation. Furt her nore,
he didn't know whether Al aska's nenbership or nonnenbership in
| RP was germane to the question unless [the state] is receiving
conpensation from the IRP that's relative to the damage caused
to Al aska' s hi ghways.

Nunmber 1782

REPRESENTATI VE FATE turned to M. Bannock's nention that the
cost has been shifted fromthe trailer to the tractor. He asked
if the comrercial trailers are no longer licensed and thus no

| onger have a license fee.

MR. BANNOCK answered that commercial trailers have a one-tine
registration or permanent registration. Unlike the truck, the
tractor requires an annual or biennial registration. In further
response to Representative Fate, M. Bannock specified that the
one-tinme fee is $10 and HB 170 proposes raising that to $20.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE surm sed then that his little trash trailer
that he hauls behind his 50-horsepower car that he registers
biennially at $10 costs nore than a commercial trailer.

MR.  BANNOCK explained that the aforenentioned isn't a good
anal ogy because the 50-horsepower car is registered biennially,
whereas the senmi-truck towing the trailer is now paying $321 per
year.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE renarked that his vehicle isn't a 50-
hor sepower vehicle but rather it's a F-250 truck for which he
pays quite a bit biennially.

MR. BANNOCK said that for a pick-up truck the [registration fee]
would be $78 biennially. The $321 fee refers to what is
coormonly referred to as a sem-truck, a tractor-truck, or a
fifth-wheel trailer-truck.

Nunmber 1663

COCHAIR HOLM requested that HB 170 be held wuntil nore
information is available with regard to the changes made [in
1998] by HB 73 and how it relates to the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities' maintenance.

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that HB 170 would held and taken up at
the conmttee' s next neeting.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- March 18, 2003



MR. BANNOCK said that he has requested departnent staff to
provide a calendar history of all comercial vehicle revenue
rates beginning in 1998, which was the |ast year that an annua
registration was collected on trailers. He related his belief
that the aforementioned will illustrate that the decrease of
approximately $1.6 mllion in 1999 was absorbed by the renmining
commerci al categori es.

[HB 170 was hel d over. ]

HB 173- FEE FOR STUDDED TI RES

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 173, "An Act relating to a fee on studded
tires; and providing for an effective date.”

Nunmber 1586

CO CHAIR HOLM noved to adopt the proposed conmttee substitute
(CS) [Version 23-@GH1127\D, Kurtz, 3/12/03] as the working
docunent . There being no objection, Version D was before the
committee.

Number 1558

BARBARA COTTING Staff to Representative Jim Holm Al aska State
Legi slature, speaking as the comittee aide, explained that
Version D, wunder Section 1, creates a fine for people who
violate the |aw It also elimnates the |anguage "or other
transfer” on page 1, line 8. Furthernore, it changes the
definition of studded tire to refer to a notor vehicle tire
rather than just a tire, which mght refer to bicycle tires.

Nunber 1498

DAVE SNYDER, Operator, Diversified Tire, related his belief that
nost people aren't likely to pay the extra $40 for studded
tires. He estinmated that 30-40 percent of Al askans would be
nore willing to jeopardize their safety and that of other
i nnocent drivers on the road than to pay the proposed fee. M.
Snyder said that he believes the $10 fee per studded tire is
extrene. He suggested an alternative of a $1 tax on all tires.
Al tires wear out the road and studded tires keep many people
safe on the road.

CO-CHAIR HOLMinquired as to the cost of siped tires.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- March 18, 2003



MR. SNYDER said his facility does a lot of siped tires. M.
Snyder informed the conmttee that siped tires and studless
winter tires don't have the sanme effect on glare ice conditions
as studded tires. M. Snyder related that he charges custoners
according to the situation. Wen a tire is full of rocks, there
is a labor-intensive rock-picking session before the tire can be
siped, and that can cost from $15-$20 per car tire. For tires
wi t hout rocks, there is a fee to sipe the tire of $10 per tire.

CO- CHAIR HOLM asked if siped tires are an alternative in nost
cases. Co-Chair Holm highlighted that Alaska is one of three
states that allow any type of studded tires.

MR. SNYDER answered that in Al aska nost of the winter conditions
[justify] the need for studded tires or chains. I f studded
tires are elimnated, M. Snyder predicted an increase in
accidents. M. Snyder said that his custonmers don't want studs,
but they need them and nust have themto be safe.

Nunber 1320

CO-CHAIR HOLM offered his wunderstanding that Canada doesn't
allow studded tires and thus he asked if there is any
i nformation regardi ng whether this has conprom sed the safety of
drivers in Canada. He related that in nost cases the use of
studded tires has been elimnated because of the damage they
create to the highways and that perhaps those areas are doing
nore salting than in Alaska. Therefore, perhaps nore salting is
an option.

Nunber 1285

JUDY SNYDER, Diversified Tire, announced her opposition to HB
173 as witten. She related that testing has proven that the
use of studded tires significantly increases safety with regard
to braking and handling while on icy road conditions. Regarding
the use of studded tires, the National Tire Safety Organization
has nmandated the use of four studded tires if any are used on a
vehi cl e. Therefore, HB 173 is essentially a $40 per vehicle
fee. She expressed concern that such a fee would preclude nany
Al askans from purchasing studded tires, which could have a
serious negative inpact on road safety. If it's determined to
be absolutely necessary to inpose a tire surcharge, M. Snyder
echoed the earlier suggestion to charge $1 on all tires sold in
Alaska and thus the burden would be nore evenly distributed
anong all drivers.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 20- March 18, 2003



CO CHAIR MASEK, wupon determning that no one else wshed to
testify, asked if there was any di scussion on HB 173.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said the testinony was that all tires exact
sone wear on hi ghways. He asked if there have been any studies
with regard to the ratio of wear froma studded tire and an all -
weat her tire.

Nunmber 1164

CGEORGE LEVASSEUER, Mai nt enance and Qper ati ons Manager ,
Sout hcentr al District, Nor t her n Regi on, Depar t ment of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF), infornmed the
commttee that there have been a nunber of studies that have
reviewed the amount of wear that studded tires do. The

departnent estinmates that every studded tire costs $50 in wear.
Therefore, for a set of four tires, over the length of their
life, there will be $200 worth of pavenent damage. There have
been a nunber of tests in which studded tires were run on one
track and an all-weather tire or radial tire alongside of it.
What was illustrated was that there isn't nuch appreciable wear
at all from the standard winter tire as conpared with the
studded tire. M. Levasseuer highlighted that in Al aska the
grooves in the highway are about 55-58 inches apart, and that's
not related to truck wear because the w dth between those tires
is about 80-82 inches. Therefore, the grooves are related to a
standard passenger vehicle equipped with studded tires. The
departnent estinmates that over $5 mllion a year [worth of]
damage i s experienced from studded tires.

CO- CHAIR MASEK recalled an earlier nmeeting during which it was
noted that the nost wear can be seen on the denn H ghway and
the Seward Hi ghway.

COCHAIR HOLM pointed out that the total anount of revenue
[generated by HB 173] is about $1, 950, 000. Therefore, [the
state] would be subsidizing in the anmount of about $3 mllion,
even with HB 173.

Nunber 1052

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked if there has been a study review ng
the safety of studded tires versus [standard all-weather] tires.

MR. LEVASSEUER inforned the commttee that the departnent has
done a nunber of studies which show that Al aska has cl ear roads

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -21- March 18, 2003



about 95 percent of the tinme in the wnter. There has been
review of several factors that help with the newer cars such as
those with anti-lock braking systens, which provide nmuch better
traction in the wnter. There are also siped tires as well as
radial tires that provide nuch better traction. Furt her nore,
nore and nore front-wheel-drive vehicles and sport-utility
vehicles (SUVs) are in use. M. Levasseuer explained that when
studded tires came out in the md-1960s, studded tires were a
valid way in which to increase traction and safety. However
now there are a nunber of nethods being used that make studded
tires alnost obsolete on Alaska's main arterials. He noted that
the departnent has a very aggressive naintenance program on the
main arterials throughout Southcentral Alaska and Southeast
Al aska. Furthernore, the departnent utilizes a very aggressive
chem cal application programw th magnesi um chl ori de.

Nunmber 0942

MR. LEVASSEUER reiterated that Al aska has clear roads about 95
percent of the tinme and said this negates [the need] to use
studs on the main arterials. He asserted that [the use of studs
on the main arterials] actually decreases the safety of the
traveling public because of the grooves from stud wear, which
coll ect water and cause the loss of traction due to hydropl aning
and decreased visibility. Therefore, M. Levasseuer related his
belief that there are a nunber of alternatives available that
provi de adequate safety on Alaska's main arterials and thus
negate the need for studded tires.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said this didn't answer his question.

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that HB 173 woul d be hel d over.

ADJ OQURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
2:55 p.m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -22- March 18, 2003



